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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

General Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Statement by Councillors and Management

made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993

(as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
* The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and the Regulations made thereunder.

* The Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements.

* The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, this Report:
« presents fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the year, and
» accords with Council's accounting and other records
We are not aware of any matter that would render this Report false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 September 2013.

Councillor Roy Maggio OW

Mayor Deputy Mayor

2

SR

Mr Roy Newsome Mr John Todd
Acting General Manager Chief Financial Officer
(Responsible Accounting Officer)
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

General Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Original
Budget* Actual Actual
2013 Notes 2013 2012
($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
60,554  Rates and Annual Charges 3(a) 61,079 58,514
11,959  User Charges and Fees 3(b) 13,294 12,105
3,526  Interest and Investment Revenue 3(c) 4,328 4,482
6,432  Other Revenues 3(d) 7,527 6,023
Grants & Contributions provided for
6,820 operating purposes 3(e&f) 7,126 8,990
Grants & Contributions provided
1,836 for capital purposes 3(edf) 18,029 22,786
Other Income:
- Net gain from the disposal of assets 5 - 771
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
- associates using the equity method 19 - -
91,127 TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 111,383 113,671
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
39,225 Employee Benefits and On-costs 4(a) 38,005 36,471
606  Borrowing Costs 4(b) 130 202
25,001  Materials and Contracts 4(c) 24,914 24,413
19,711 Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 4(d) 19,075 18,387
13,918  Other Expenses 4(e) 12,778 10,952
- Interest and Investment Losses 3(c) - -
- Net Loss from the disposal of assets 5 4,247 -
b |
Share of interests in joint ventures and associates
- using the equity method 19 - -
98,461 TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 99,149 90,425
(7,334) OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 12,234 23,246
- Operating result from discontinued operations 24 - -
7,334) NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 2(a) 12,234 23,246
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE GRANTS
(9,170) & CONTRIBUTIONS PROVIDED FOR CAPITAL PURPOSES (5,795) 460

* Original budget as approved by Council - Refer Note 16
The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
General Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2013
Notes 2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
Net operating result for the year - from Income Statement 12,234 23,246
Other comprehensive income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to
operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 20(b) (257,869) -
Adjustment to correct prior period errors 20(d) -

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to
operating result when specific conditions are met.

Realised available-for-sale investment gains recognised in revenue  20(b)
Gain (loss) on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 20(b)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (245,635) 23,246

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
- Council (245,635) 23,246
- Non-controlling Interests

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

General Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2013
Notes 2013 2012

($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(a) 15,805 13,973
Investments 6(b) 46,450 38,000
Receivables 7 5,697 6,379
Inventories 8 447 330
Other 8 388 231
Non-Current assets classified as held for Sale 22 910 -
Total Current Assets 69,697 58,913
Non-Current Assets
Investments 6(b) 29,622 27,109
Receivables 7 1,004 1,023
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 9 1,911,231 2,171,833
Investments accounted for using equity method 19 - -
Investment Property 14 2,620 2,275
Intangible assets 25 - -
Other 8 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 1,944,477 2,202,240
TOTAL ASSETS 2,014,174 2,261,153
LIABILITES
Current Liabilities
Payables 10(a) 14,843 16,387
Borrowings 10(a) 527 492
Prowisions 10(a) 9,853 9,130
Total Current Liabilites 25,223 26,009
Non-Current Liabilites
Payables 10(a) - -
Borrowings 10(a) 2,895 3,412
Provisions 10(a) 180 221
Total Non-Current Liabilites 3,075 3,633
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,298 29,642
NET ASSETS 1,985,876 2,231,511
EQUITY
Retained Earnings 20 1,725,369 1,713,135
Revaluation reserves 20 260,507 518,376
Council equity interest 1,985,876 2,231,511
Minority equity interest . ©
TOTAL EQUITY 1,985,876 2,231,511

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
General Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2013
Original
Budget*
2013 Notes 2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)  ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
60,554 Rates & Annual Charges 61,183 58,290
12,966 User Charges & Fees 14,034 12,885
3,543 Investment Revenue and Interest 4,283 4,413
7,129 Grants and Contributions 26,792 19,761
- Deposits and Retentions 1,622 1,752
6,740 Other 8,059 7,604
Payments
(39,370) Employee Benefits and on-costs (37,439) (34,864)
(23,542) Materials and Contracts (31,673) (25,719)
(274) Borrowing Costs (130) (203)
- Deposits and Retentions (1,460) (1,510)
(15,455) Other (12,815) (11,307)
Net cash provided (or used) in
12,291  Operating Activities 11(b) 32,456 31,102
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
50,030 Sale of Investments 18,373 28,545

Sale of Investment Property
- Sale of Real Estate Assets - =
1,100 Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 1,174 1,200
- Sale of Interests in Joint Ventures/Associates - -
Proceeds from Boundary Adjustment - -
- Other - -
Payments
(46,450) Purchase of Investments (27,929) (32,093)
Purchase of Investment property - -
(22,322) Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (21,760) (22,543)
- Purchase of Real Estate -
- Purchase of Interests in Joint Ventures/Associates < =
- Other - -
Net cash provided by (or used in)
(17,642) Investing Activities (30,142) (24,891)

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Borrowings and Advances = s

- Other - -
Payments
(381) Borrowings and Advances (482) (442)
- Lease Liabilities - -
- Other - -
Net cash provided by (or used in)

(381) Financing Activities 482, (442)
(5,732) Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,832 5,769
13,973 Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning Reporting Pd  11(a) 13,973 8,204

8,241 Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of Reporting Pd 11(a) 15,805 13,973

* Original budget as approved by Council - Refer Note 16
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government
Act (1993) and Regulation, and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.
City of Ryde is a not for profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

(i)  New and amended standards adopted by Council

None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 July 2012 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current period or
any prior period and are not likely to affect future periods.

(i) Early adoption of standards

City of Ryde has not elected to apply any pronouncements before their operative date in the annual
reporting period beginning 1 July 2012.

(iiij) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and
investment property.

(iv) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Council’s accounting
policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity
and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(v) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

City of Ryde makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

(i) Estimated fair values of investment properties.

(ii) Estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

(i)  Estimated tip remediation provisions.

(vi) Critical judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

(i) Impairment of Receivables
Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables
in Note 7.

(ii) Projected Section 94 Commitments
Council has used significant judgement in determining future Section 94 income and
expenditure in Note 17.

(i) Valuation of Infrastructure assets
Council employs a number of staff who possess Tertiary qualifications in Engineering. Those
staff are also responsible for estimating the cost of construction of new infrastructure works,
especially for works done in-house. Using this expertise Council has revalued its infrastructure

Il e e 5 HE BN
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

assets to the cost of replacing those assets in-house. Those estimates are based on the actual
costs to replace infrastructure assets by Council recently.

The same staff are also responsible for estimating the useful lives of infrastructure assets, based on
their experiences and similar assets in other Council areas.

These changes, based on these judgements, have the potential to impact the amount of depreciation
into the future. This will be further reviewed during 2013/2014 and clearly identified for those
financial statements.

(b) Revenue recognition

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities
as described below. Council bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is measured on
major income categories as follows:
Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (including developer contributions) are recognised as
revenues when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required but the
Council may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating
year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification
that a grant has been secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.

Revenue is recognised when the Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the
contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to the Council and
the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition
that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions were
undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note 3(g). The note also
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council's
operations during the current year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite
service has not been provided at balance date.

User charges and fees

User charges and fees (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has
been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.

Sale of plant, property, infrastructure and equipment

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the
buyer.

Interest and rents

Interest and rents are recognised as revenue on a proportional basis when the payment is due, the value of
the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever first occurs.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

(c) Principles of consolidation

(i)  The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the LGA 1993, all money and property received by
Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust
Fund. The consolidated fund and other entities through which the Council controls resources to carry on its
functions have been included in the financial statements forming part of this report.

(ii) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), a
separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the Council
in trust which must be applied only for the purposes of or in accordance with the trusts relating to those
monies. Trust monies and property subject to Council's control have been included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Council but not subject to the centrol of Council, have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the
Council office by any person free of charge.

(iii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Council has significant influence but not control or joint control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

(iv) Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of a joint venture activity have been
incorporated into the financial statements under the appropriate headings. Details of the activity are set out
in note 19.

Joint venture entities

The interest in a joint venture partnership is accounted for using the equity method after initially being
recognised at cost. Under the equity method, the share of the profits or losses of the partnership is
recognised in profit or loss, and the share of post acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Details relating to the partnership are set out in Note 19.

Profits or losses on transactions establishing the joint venture partnership and transactions with the joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Council's ownership interest until such time as they are realised by
the joint venture partnership on consumption or sale. However, a loss on the transaction is recognised
immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets, or an
impairment loss.

(d) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where Council, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long term
payables. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that Council will obtain ownership at the end
of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Lease income from operating leases where Council is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(e) Acquisition of assets

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Council's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

(f) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there is separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(h) Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settliement within
14 days.

Collectibility of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account (provision for impairment of
receivables) is used when there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. . Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
(more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the
impairment allowance is the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows elating to short-term
receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement within other expenses. When a
receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent
period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against other expenses in the income statement.

(i) Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
include the transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of
raw material. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(ii) Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific
identification and includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during
development. When development is completed borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as
incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if
the expenditure on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs
incurred while active development is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.

(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried at
fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group held
for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation in a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of business or area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the
face of the income statement.

(k) Investments and other financial assets

Classification

Council classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held to
maturity, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are included in receivables (note 7) in the balance sheet.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Council's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If
Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Held to maturity financial assets are
included in non current asset, except those with maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date,
which are classified as current assets.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. Investments are designated
as available for sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments and
management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.

Financial assets - reclassification

Council may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-for-trading category
if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets other
than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category only in rare
circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In
addition, Council may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale categories if it has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future and until maturity at the date of classification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of
cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

Recognition and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the
Council commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and Council has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss category are presented in the income statement within other income or other expenses
in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of revenue from continuing operations when Council’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit and loss, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities reclassified
as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Details of how the fair value of financial instruments is determined are disclosed in note 1(l).

Impairment

Council assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

Investment Policy

Council has an approved investment policy complying with Section 625 of the Local Government Act and
s212 of the LG (General) Regulations 2005. Investments are placed and managed in accordance with that
policy and having particular regard to authorised investments prescribed under the Ministerial Local
Government Investment Order. Council maintains an investment policy that complies with the Act and
ensures that it or its representatives exercise care, diligence and skill that a prudent person would exercise
in investing council funds.

Council amended its policy following revisions to the Ministerial Local Government Investment Order arising
from the Cole Inquiry recommendations. Certain investments the Council holds are no longer prescribed,
however they have been retained under grandfathering provisions of the Order. These will be disposed of
when most financially advantageous to Council.

() Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement
or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. Council uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Council for similar financial instruments.

(m) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Council's assets have been progressively revalued to fair value in accordance with a staged implementation

advised by the Division of Local Government. At balance date the following classes of IPPE were stated at
their fair value:

Operational land (External Valuation).

Buildings — Specialised/Non Specialised (External Valuation).
Water/Sewerage Networks (Internal Valuation).

Plant and equipment (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).
Road assets — roads, bridges and footpaths (Internal Valuation).
Drainage assets — (Internal Valuation).

Bulk earthworks — (Internal Valuation).

Community land — (External Valuation).

Land Improvements (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).
Other structures (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).
Other assets (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).

Operational land was last valued in 2008 and will be revalued by June 2014. Council is of the opinion that
the carrying amount of the asset would not differ materially had a revaluation occurred at the reporting date.

For all other assets, Council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a revalued
asset’s carrying amount may differ materially from that which would be determined if the asset were revalued
at the reporting date. If any such indication exists, Council determines the asset's fair value and revalues the
asset to that amount. Full revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a 5 year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation reserve. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first charged
against revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the asset;
all other decreases are charged to the Income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. In determining the useful lives and unit rates for each asset type, an "evidence” based approach has
been taken. For most assets, there is no ready “tradeable” market, and Councils are the major if not only
provider of such assets (eg local roads and their drainage). In-house technical expertise is available and is
used. The major exception is buildings, which were valued externally.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the income statement.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

Land, other than land under roads, is classified as either operational or community in accordance with Part 2
of Chapter 6 of the Local Government Act (1993). This classification is made in Note 9(a).

(n) Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is
not occupied by the Council. Investment property is carried at fair value, which is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location, or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, Council uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices in less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by a member of
the Australian Property Institute. Changes in fair values are recorded in profit and loss as part of other
income.

Investment property includes properties that are under construction for future use as investment properties.
These are also carried at fair value unless the fair value can not yet be reliably determined. Where that is the
case, the property will be accounted for at cost until either the fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is complete.

(o) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value
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Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(s) Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick
leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related services are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual
leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term
employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

(ii)  Other Long term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be settled within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision
for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to
various defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised in the
balance sheet, and measured as the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date plus
unrecognised actuarial gains (less unrecognised actuarial losses) less the fair value of the superannuation
fund's assets at that date and any unrecognised past service cost. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is based on expected future payments which arise from membership of the fund to the reporting
date, calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of
service. However, when this information is not reliably available, Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans (see below).

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme has advised member councils that, as a result of the global
financial crisis, it has a significant deficiency of assets over liabilities. As a result, they have asked for
significant increases in contributions to recover that deficiency. Council’'s share of that deficiency cannot be
accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled
together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Council's accounts. Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability in note 18 to reflect the possible
obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to correct the deficiency.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(t) Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.
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(u) Land under roads

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB
1051.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 — Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips
and median strips.

(v) Provisions for close down and restoration and for environmental clean up costs - Tips
and quarries

(i) Restoration

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are
provided for in the accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs,
whether this occurs during the development or during the operation phase, based on the net present value of
estimated future costs. Provisions for close down and restoration costs do not include any additional
obligations which are expected to arise from future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a
closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known
developments, eg updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of operations, and are subject
to formal review at regular intervals.

Close down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority
of close down and restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the
ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and
engineering studies using current restoration standards and techniques.

The amortisation or 'unwinding' of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of provisions is
charged to the income statement in each accounting period. The amortisation of the discount is shown as a
borrowing cost.

Other movements in the provisions for close down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new
disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations and revisions to discount
rates are capitalised within property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of
the assets to which they relate.

(ii) Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of
closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each balance
sheet date and the cost is charged to the income statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean up obligations
outstanding at the balance sheet date. These costs are charged to the income statement. Movements in the
environmental clean up provisions are presented as an operating cost, except for the unwind of the discount
which is shown as a borrowing cost. Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the
damage, remediation process and estimated remediation costs become known, but may continue for many
years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in
response to many factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new
restoration techniques or experience at other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change,
for example in response to changes in quarry reserves or production rates. As a result there could be
significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and environmental clean up, which
would affect future financial results.

(w) Allocation between current and non-current assets and liabilities

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the
time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
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expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Council's operational cycle. In the case of
liabilities where Council does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as
vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be settled within the
next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in
the next 12 months.

(x) New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30
June 2013 reporting periods. Council’'s assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations
is set out below.

(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009 11 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) (effective from 1 January 2013%)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2013 but is available for early
adoption. When adopted, the standard will affect in particular the Council's accounting for its available-for-
sale financial assets, since AASB 9 only permits the recognition of fair value gains and losses in other
comprehensive income if they relate to equity investments that are not held for trading. Fair value gains and
losses on available-for-sale debt investments, for example, will therefore have to be recognised directly in
profit or loss.

There will be no impact on the Council's accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the
Council does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred from AASB 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

*In December 2011, the IASB delayed the application date of IFRS 9 to 1 January 2015. The AASB is
expected to make an equivalent amendment to AASB 9 shortly.

(ii) Revised AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements
Standards (effective 1 January 2013)

In August 2011, the AASB issued a suite of five new and amended standards which address the accounting
for joint arrangements, consalidated financial statements and associated disclosures.

AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. The core principle that
a consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as if they are a single economic entity remains
unchanged, as do the mechanics of consolidation. However, the standard introduces a single definition of
control that applies to all entities. It focuses on the need to have both power and rights or exposure to
variable returns. Power is the current ability to direct the activities that significantly influence returns. Returns
must vary and can be positive, negative or both. Control exists when the investor can use its power to affect
the amount of its returns. There is also new guidance on participating and protective rights and on
agent/principal relationships. Council does not expect the new standard to have a significant impact on its
composition.

AASB 11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint arrangements. The focus is no
longer on the legal structure of joint arrangements, but rather on how rights and obligations are shared by
the parties to the joint arrangement. Based on the assessment of rights and obligations, a joint arrangement
will be classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, and the choice to proportionately consolidate will no longer be permitted. Parties to a joint
operation will account their share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities in much the same way as
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under the previous standard. AASB 11 also provides guidance for parties that participate in joint
arrangements but do not share joint control.

Council's investment in the joint venture partnership will be classified as a joint venture under the new rules.
As Council already applies the equity method in accounting for this investment, AASB 11 will not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in its financial statements.

AASB 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards, AASB 10 and
AASB 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in AASB 127 and AASB 128. Application
of this standard by Council will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but will
impact the type of information disclosed in relation to Council's investments.

Amendments to AASB 128 provide clarification that an entity continues to apply the equity method and does
not remeasure its retained interest as part of ownership changes where a joint venture becomes an
associate, and vice versa. The amendments also introduce a “partial disposal” concept. Council is still
assessing the impact of these amendments.

Council does not expect to adopt the new standards before their operative date. They would therefore be
first applied in the financial statements for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2014.

(iii) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 13 (effective 1 January 2013)

AASB 13 was released in September 2011. It explains how to measure fair value and aims to enhance fair
value disclosures. Council has yet to determine which, if any, of its current measurement techniques will
have to change as a result of the new guidance. It is therefore not possible to state the impact, if any, of the
new rules on any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. However, application of the new
standard will impact the type of information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Council does
not intend to adopt the new standard before its operative date, which means that it would be first applied in
the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2014.

(iv) Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits, AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011) and AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB
119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements (effective 1 January
2013)

In September 2011, the AASB released a revised standard on accounting for employee benefits. It requires
the recognition of all remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities/assets immediately in other
comprehensive income (removal of the so-called 'corridor' method) and the calculation of a net interest
expense or income by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. This replaces the
expected return on plan assets that is currently included in profit or loss. The standard also introduces a
number of additional disclosures for defined benefit liabilities/assets and could affect the timing of the
recognition of termination benefits. The amendments will have to be implemented retrospectively. Council
does not recognise defined benefit assets and liabilities for the reasons set out in note 1 (s)(iii) and so these
changes will not have an impact on its reported results.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that are expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

(y) Crown Reserves

Crown Reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership
of the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is
responsible for their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves
are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by
Council and revenues relating the reserves are recognised within Council's Income Statement.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

Representations from both State and Local Government are being sought to develop a consistent accounting
treatment for Crown Reserves across both tiers of government.

(z) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as
operating cash flows.
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ATTACHMENT 8

ITEM 4 (continued)
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NOTE 2(a)
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 2(b) COMPONENTS OF FUNCTIONS OR ACTIVITIES

The activities relating to the Council's functions and activities reported on in Note 2 (a) are as
follows:

Catchment program

Managing, monitoring and maintaining water quality and reuse, our stormwater and
natural waterways.

Centres and Neighbourhood program

Developing, delivering, maintaining and managing our public domain infrastructure,
facilities and place management.

Community and Cultural program

Managing all community services, community development, community buildings
and events and driving cultural development.

Customer and Community Relations program

Engaging with our community, all media and community relations, branding and
marketing our city and developing and managing all our customer services.

Economic Development program
Business sector and economic development.
Environmental program

Monitoring and managing our environmental performance, developing environmental
policy and making our community aware of environmental impact.

Foreshore program
Managing all aspects of our foreshore.
Governance and Civic program

Supporting our mayor and councillors; through council process and civic events; and
providing guidance on governance to support other areas of council.

Internal Corporate Services program

Developing and managing our information, records and corporate knowledge;
implementing information technology, communications, business, financial and HR
infrastructure and services. Managing our fleet and plant; planning and developing
assets; all project management and administrative support.

Land Use Planning program

Planning, delivering and managing our land and urban design and enhancing and
informing on our heritage.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 2(b) Components of Functions or Activities (continued)
Library program

Delivering all our library services.
Open Space, Sport & Recreation program

Developing, delivering, maintaining and managing all our sports, recreation, outdoor,
open spaces and natural areas infrastructure, services and facilities.

Organisational Development program

Addressing workforce planning, driving culture and performance, assessing process
efficiency and overseeing all corporate communications.

Paths and Cycleways program
Developing, managing and maintaining our footpaths and cycleways.
Property Portfolio program

Developing, managing and maintaining our portfolio of corporate, commercial and
civic properties.

Regulatory program

Delivering all our regulatory assessments and activities, including building
regulations, environmental regulations, road, parking and footpath enforcement and
animal management.

Risk Management program

Managing all legal services, procurement and internal auditing, assessing and
managing business continuity, risk and disaster management.

Roads program
Managing and maintaining our roads, bridges and retaining walls.
Strategic City program

Providing strategic direction and planning; and manages the reporting on our
corporate performance.

Traffic & Transport program

Managing our transport, traffic and carparking; developing sustainable transport
options.

Waste and Recycling program

Managing our domestic and commercial waste services, educating on and facilitating
recycling and disposal services.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 3 INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
(a) Rates and Annual Charges
Ordinary Rates
Residential 25,384 24,397
Business 12,985 12,417
Environmental Management Lewy 5,926 5,693
Total Ordinary Rates 44,295 42,507
Special Rates
Macquarie Park 1,235 1,185
Total Special Rates 1,235 1,185
Annual Charges (pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)
Domestic Waste Management Senices 14,287 13,674
Stormwater Management Senvice Charge 986 981
Section 611 Charges 276 167
Total Annual Charges 15,549 14,822
Total Rates and Annual Charges 61,079 58,514

Council has used 2010 valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

(b) User Charges and Fees
User Charges (pursuant to s.502)

Aquatic Centre 4,798 4,480
Sports Facility Rental 540 565
Hall Hire 463 455
Road Restorations 2,285 1,508
Gutter Crossings 285 281
Commercial Waste Senice 811 787
Other 37 38
Total User Charges 9,219 8,114
Fees
Regulatory/Statutory Fees 1,865 1,699
s603 Certificates 145 167
Discretionary
- Parking fees 867 862
- Environmental Planning 878 794
- Private Works 109 103
- Vacation Care 5 141
- Home Maintenance & Modification 59 106
- Other 147 119
Total Fees 4,075 3,991
Total User Charges and Fees 13,294 12,105

(c) Interest and Investment Revenue (Losses)
Owerdue Rates & Charges 203 174
Cash, cash equivalents and investments:
- Externally restricted 789 422
- Internally restricted - -
- Unrestricted 3,302 3,872
Impairment Losses
- Investments # =
Premiums recognised on financial instrument transactions
Amortisation of discounts and premiums:
- Investments held to maturity 34 14

Total Interest and Investment Revenue 4,328 4,482
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 3 Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

2013 2012

($'000) ($'000)
(d) Other Revenues
Fair value adjustments - investment properties 345 75
Rental income:
- Investment Property 227 211
- Other Property 1,277 943
Parking Fines 3,823 3,113
Other Fines 53 71
Ex Gratia rates = =
Materials Recycling 207 165
Lease - Telecommunications 177 234
Legal Fees Recoweries
- Rates = N
- Other 13 1
Insurance Claims 5 97
Staff Vehicle Leases and Other Payments 545 492
Eastwood Plaza 49 36
Sundry Sales 67 31
Other 739 554
Total Other Revenue 7,527 6,023

OPERATING CAPITAL

2013 2012 2013 2012

($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
(e) Grants
General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance 2,939 3,734 = 2
Pensioner Rebate Subsidy - Rates 513 532 2 i
Total General Purpose (Untied) 3,452 4,266 - -
Specific Purpose
Pensioner Rebate Subsidy - Domestic Waste 216 216 - -
Vacation Care 51 56 - -
Master Plans - - - -
Library 266 264 - -
Home Maintenance & Modification 459 394 - -
Child Care Assistance = ~ = #
DEEWR - Apprentice Rebate Scheme 23 34 - -
Community Staff Funding 225 207 - -
Street & Traffic Lighting 364 355 - -
Roads To Recovery - - 424 424
RTA Transport - = 481 573
Parks Grants - - 546 50
Domestic Waste Management - - - -
Graffiti Management 100 - - -
Town Centres - - 2,430 -
Catchment Management = - 179 -
Other 131 122 35 134
Total Specific Purpose 1,835 1,648 4,095 1,181
Total Grants 5,287 5,914 4,095 1,181
Comprising:
- Commonwealth funding 3,934 4,746 0 0
- State funding 1,353 1,168 4,095 1,181
- Other funding - - - -

5,287 5,914 4,095 1,181
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013
NOTE 3 Income from Continuing Operations (continued)
OPERATING CAPITAL
2013 2012 2013 2012
($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
(f) Contributions
Deweloper Contributions (s94)

- Open Space - - 5,550 4,985

- Parking - - - -

- Drainage - - 571 213

- Traffic Facilities - - 3,203 1,702

- Other - - 263 40

- Meadowbank - - - -

- Community Facilities - - 2,381 1,575
Voluntary Planning Agreements - - 1,653 404
Other Councils 557 532 - -
Community Facilities 153 - - -
Community Events 5 - - -
Other 36 55 283 86
RTA Contributions

- Roads & Bridges 292 1,584 - -

- Other 96 99 - -
Buildings & Property (In Kind) (" - - - 12,500
Buildings & Property (In Kind) - s94 - - - -
Customer/Resident Contributions - - 30 100
LSL Contributions from other Councils 26 211 - -
Macquarie Park Master Plans - - - -
Bus Shelters - - - -
Waste Performance Improvement Program 674 595 - =
Total Contributions 1,839 3,076 13,934 21,605
Total Grants & Contributions 7,126 8,990 18,029 22,786

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
(g) Restrictions relating to Grants and Contributions
Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council
on the condition that they be spent in a specified manner:
Grants and contributions recognised in the current
reporting period which have not been spent 15,570 9,749
Less:
Grants and contributions recognised in previous
reporting periods which have been spent in the
current reporting period 3,074 2,573
Net increase/(decrease) in Restricted Grants and
Contributions 12,496 7,176

(1) In 2011/2012 Council received the West Ryde Community Centre at 3 Anthony Street, West Ryde.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 4 EXEPNSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)

(a) Employee Benefits & On Costs

Salaries and Wages 27,875 25,599
Employee Leave Entitlements 7,528 8,251
Superannuation 3,647 3,290
Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,164 1,152
FBT 115 151
Training Costs (excluding salaries) 409 369
Other 410 505
Less: Capitalised Costs (3,143) (2,846)
Total Employee Costs Expensed 38,005 36,471
Number of FTE Employees 442 427

(b) Borrowing Costs

Interest on overdrafts -
Interest on loans 130 202
Charges on finance leases # =
Discounts recognised on financial

instrument transactions
Amortisation of discounts and premiums

- Investments held to maturity - -

- Remediation
Less: Capitalised Costs
Total Borrowing Costs Expensed 130 202
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013
NOTE 4 Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)
2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
(c) Materials and Contracts
Raw materials and consumables " 991 " 1,427
Contractor and Consultancy Costs 8 23,722 s 22,634
Audit Fees:
- Audit Senices 55 53
- Other" 1 2
Legal Fees:
- Planning & Development 145 172
- Other 485 301
Operating leases
- Computers - -
Infringement Notice Contract (SEINS) 478 384
Other - -
Less: Capitalised Costs (963) (560)

Total Materials & Contracts 24,914 ' 24,413

() During the year the following fees were paid or payable for senices
provided by the Council’s auditor — Hill Rogers Spencer Steer:

(i) Audit and other assurance senices
Audit and review of financial statements 55 53
Other assurance senices:
— Audit of regulatory returns ” =
— Due diligence senvices - -

Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 55 53
(ii) Taxation senices

Tax compliance senices - -
Total remuneration for taxation services = 5 i 2
(iii) Other Senices

Advice on Financial Projections for projects 2 2

Attendance of Council meetings 1 1
Total remuneration for other services 3 3
Total remuneration of Hills Rogers Spencer Steer 58 56
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013
NOTE 4 Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)
Depreciation/Amortisation Impairment
2013 2012 2013 2012
(d) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Plant and Equipment 2,187 1,564
Office Equipment 1,335 1,387
Furniture & Fittings 191 180
Property Plant and Equipment Leased - -
Land Improvements (Depreciable) 928 928
Buildings - Specialised 1,188 1,188
- Non-specialised 1,238 1,232

Other Structures 2,380 2,496
Infrastructure:

- Roads, Bridges and Footpaths 5,435 5,435

- Stormwater Drainage 3,801 3,801
Other Assets:

- Heritage Collections - -

- Library Books 508 484
Total Depreciation Costs 19,191 18,695
Less: Capitalised Costs/Impairment reversals (116) (308)
Total Depreciation and Total Impairment 19,075 18,387 - -
(e) Other Expenses 2013 2012

($'000) ($'000)

Other expenses for the year

include the following:-
Fair Value decrements - Investment Properties - -
Bad & Doubtful Debts 747 8)
Mayoral Fee 58 57
Councillors' Fees 260 254
Councillors' (incl. Mayor) Expenses 107 117
Election Costs (excl. Employee Costs) 450 -
Interest on Refundable Deposits 72 134
Insurance 1,085 1,062
Insurance - Statewide Mutual Provision - -
Street Lighting 2,156 1,811
Communications Costs 230 191
Contribution to Fire Control 1,485 1,497
Contribution to Dept of Planning 239 231
Contributions & Donations - Community Grants 783 482
Waste Development Tax 2,669 2,280
Membership Fees 117 112
Valuation Fees 166 147
Electricity & Heating 1,640 1,360
Water Rates 349 305
Bank Fees & Charges 212 198
Property Lease Costs 5 56
Postage & Courier Costs 222 259
Advertising 216 210
Operating Leases - -
Parking Infringement Collection - -
Remediation - -
Green Waste Collection Charges - -
Other Expenses 187 197
Less: Capitalised Costs (4) -
Total Other Expenses From Continuing Operations 12,778 10,952
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 5 GAIN OR LOSS FROM THE DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF STRATUM LAND
Proceeds from disposal 100 -
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold : =
Gain (or loss) on disposal 100 -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY
Proceeds from disposal - -
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold - -
Gain (or loss) on disposal - -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Proceeds from disposal 1,071 1,200
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 1,275 1,444
Gain (or loss) on disposal (204) (244)
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF REAL ESTATE ASSETS
HELD FOR SALE
Proceeds from sales - -
Less: Cost of sales - -
Gain (or loss) on disposal - -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT
Proceeds from disposal 3 -
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 23 -
Gain (or loss) on disposal (20) -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF LIBRARY BOOKS
Proceeds from disposal - -
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold - -
Gain (or loss) on disposal - -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF WORKS IN PROGRESS
Proceeds from disposal - -
Less: Carrying value of Works in Progress " 5,496 -
Gain (or loss) on disposal (5,496) -
GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
Proceeds from disposal 3,372 2,015
Less: Carrying value of Financial assets 1,999 1,000
Gain (or loss) on disposal 1,373 1,015
NET GAIN (OR LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS (4,247) 771

(1) Council resolved on Tuesday 25 September 2012 to discontinue with the redevelopment of the
Civic Centre Precinct.

The total costs associated with that project were $5.496 million as at that date, which have now been
written off to the Income Statement as they were held as Work in Progress.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 6(a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2013 2012
Notes ($'000) ($'000)
Cash at bank and on hand 458 300
Deposits at call 15,347 13,673
15,805 13,973
I B A B B
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 6(b) INVESTMENTS

The following financial assets are held as investments:

2013 2012
Current  Non-Current Current  Non-Current
($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit and Loss - - - -
Held to Maturity Investments 46,450 29,622 38,000 27,109
Available for Sale Financial Assets - = i -
Total 46,450 29,622 38,000 27,109
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
At beginning of year = - 500 -
Revaluation to income statement - - - -
Additions - - - -
Disposals (Sale/Redemption) 3 : (500) .
Reclassification
At end of year - - - -
Held for Trading:
- Managed funds - -
- CDOs
- FRNs
- Listed equity securities
TOTAL - - - -
Held to Maturity Investments
At beginning of year 38,000 27,109 49,530 10,502
Amortisation of discounts & premiums - 34 - 14
Additions 18,950 8,979 12,000 20,093
Disposals (15,000) (2,000) (26,030) (1,000)
Impairment - - - -
Transfer to Current 4,500 (4,500) 2,500 (2,500)
At end of year 46,450 29,622 38,000 27,109
Comprising of:
- CDOs - - - -
- FANs 3,000 16,881 1,000 17,870
- Fixed Bonds - 1,991 - 1,989
- Other 43,450 10,750 37,000 7,250
TOTAL 46,450 29,622 38,000 27,109
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 6(c) RESTRICTED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

2013 2012

Notes Current Non-Current Current  Non-Current

($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)

Total cash, cash equivalents

and investments 62,255 29,622 51,973 27,109
External restrictions 9,481 24,941 6,112 14,831
Internal restrictions 48,149 4,681 38,610 12,278

Unrestricted 4,625 - 7,251 -
Total 62,255 29,622 51,973 27,109

Opening  Transfers Transfers Closing
Balance To From Balance
30 June 2012 Restriction Restriction 30 June 2013

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

External Restrictions
Included in liabilities
Other
Developer Contributions (A) 11,775 12,757 (2,415) 22,117
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants (B) 1,942 2,813 (659) 4,096
Domestic Waste Management (C) 4,355 14,550 (14,116) 4,789
Stormwater Management 963 990 (551) 1,402
Macquarie Park Special Rate 1,692 1,241 (1,114) 1,819
External Works Drainage Contributions 215 1 17) 199
Total External Restrictions 20,942 32,352 (18,872) 34,422
| N N
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 6(c) Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Opening  Transfers Transfers Closing
Balance To From Balance
30 June 2012 Restriction Restriction 30 June 2013
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Internal Restrictions
Plant Replacement Resene 1,869 2,169 (2,027) 2,011
Employee Leave Entitlements 2,900 210 - 3,110
Incompleted/Carry Over Works and Projects 3,27 2,760 (3,264) 2,767
Refundable Deposits 8,201 223 - 8,424
Voluntary Planning Agreements 792 1,653 (217) 2,228
Asset Replacement Reserve 7,008 5,850 (3,794) 9,064
Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre 2,721 3,460 (4,429) 1,752
Investment Property Reserne 16,766 - (1,127) 15,639
Civic Centre Precinct Redevelopment Reserve 1,971 500 (1,213) 1,258
Financial Security Reserve 2,064 1,374 - 3,438
Insurance Fluctuation Reserve 282 195 (63) 414
Other 3,044 1,862 (2,181) 2,725
Total Internal Restrictions 50,889 20,256 (18,315) 52,830
Total Restrictions 71,831 52,608 (37,187 ) 87,252
A. Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of senices

and amenities in accordance with contributions plans (See separate Note 17).

B. Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were
obtained.

C. Domestic Waste Management funds are externally restricted assets
which must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 7 RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
Purpose Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)

Rates and Annual Charges 1,310 874 1,373 915
Rates Interest & Extra Charges 195 130 162 108
User Charges & Fees

Emvironmental & Health 353 - 283 =

Restorations 569 - 201 -

Recreational Facilities 151 - 94 -

Property & Infrastructure Works 58 - 175 -

Home Modification Senice 10 - 12 "

Ryde Aquatic Leisure Centre 105 - 111 -
Interest on Investments 893 - 882 -
Contributions to Works 140 - 248 =
Gowernment Grants & Subsidies 854 - 1,639 -
Commercial Waste 340 - 266 ”
GST 318 - 852 -
Asset Sales = = = .
Workers Compensation 16 - 19 -
Voluntary Planning Agreement - - - -
Computer Equipment Charges - - - -
Other 570 - 280 -
Total 5,882 1,004 6,597 1,023

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

- Rates and Annual Charges - - p: .
- Interest and extra charges

- User Charges and Fees 185 - 218 -
- Government Grants & Subsidies - - - -

5,697 1,004 6,379 1,023
EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES (Incl Abovi
Domestic Waste Management - - 318 212
TOTAL RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES = - 318 212
UNRESTRICTED RECEIVABLES 5,697 1,004 6,061 811
TOTAL RECEIVABLES 5,697 1,004 6,379 1,023
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 7 Receivables (continued)

Rates and Annual Charges

Rates are secured by underlying properties.

Interest is charged on overdue rates at 10% (2012 9%). Rates are due for payment on 31 August,
30 November, 28 February and 31 May in each financial year. Overdue rates are those not paid
within 1 day of the due date. The amount of the overdue debts upon which interest is charged is
$2,184,000 (2012 $2,288,000)

User Charges and Fees

User charges and fees are unsecured. The credit risk for this class of debtor is 100% of the carrying
value. A provision for doubtful debts in respect of the class of debtor has already been provided in
an amount of $185,000.

Government Grants

Government grants and subsidies (subject to terms and conditions of the relevant agreement) have
been guaranteed.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 8 INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

2013 2012

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Inventories
Real Estate - - -
Stores and Materials 447 - 330
Other - - -
Total Inventories 447 - 330 -
Inventories not expected to be
realised within the next 12 months 97 - 132 -
Other Assets
Prepayments 388 - 231 -
Total Other Assets 388 - 231 -
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 10(a) PAYABLES, BORROWINGS & PROVISIONS

2013 2012

Current  Non-Current Current Non-Current

($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Payables
Goods and Senices 5,390 - 5,280 -
Payments Received in Advance 664 - 1,248 -
Payments received in advance - Rates 191 - 184 -
Accrued Expenses 510 = 1,630 =
Advances - - - -
Interest Expenses 1 - 1 -
Deposits and Retentions 8,047 - 7,883 -
Staff Taxation Payments ] ;) = £
Staff Salaries & Wages - - - -
Trust Account Deposits -
Domestic Waste - - 123 -
Other Contributions - - - =
Other 40 - 38 -
Total Payables 14,843 = 16,387 =
Current Payables not expected to be
settled within the next 12 months 6,236 - 6,109
Borrowings
Bank Overdraft - - - -
Loans - secured' 527 2,895 492 3,412
Loans - unsecured
Government Advances
Ratepayers advances
Finance lease liability - - - -
Deferred payment liabilities
Total Interest Bearing Liabilities 527 2,895 492 3,412
Provisions®®
Annual & Other Accrued Leave 3,199 - 3,048 -
Sick Leave 203 - 200 -
Long Senice Leave 6,451 180 5,882 221
Employee Leave Entitlements On Costs - - = -
Site Remediation (see Note 26) = = # =
Self Insurance Liabilities - - - -
Other Employee Provisions - - - -
Total Provisions 9,853 180 9,130 221
Current provisions not expected to be
settled within the next 12 months 5,381 - 5,707 -
Liabilities relating to restricted assets
Domestic Waste Management - - 123 -
Total Liabilites relating to restricted assets - - 123 -
Liabilities relating to unrestricted assets 25,223 3,075 25,886 3,633
Total 25,223 3,075 26,009 3,633

M Loans are secured by the rating income of Council.
@ Vested ELE is all carried as a current provision.
® Increase in provision due to movement in the Commonwealth Government Securities for 2012
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 10(b) DESCRIPTION AND MOVEMENTS IN PROVISIONS

Opening Increase in Re- Closing

Balance Provision Payments Measurement Balance
Class of Provision ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000)
Annual & Other Accrued Leave 3,048 2,527 2,376 - 3,199
Sick Leave 200 3 - - 203
Long Senice Leawe 6,103 1,085 557 - 6,631
Total 9,351 3,615 2,933 - 10,033
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ITEM 4 (continued)

NOTE 11

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

ATTACHMENT 8

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING RESULT TO NET CASH MOVEMENT

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Assets

Total Cash

and Cash Equivalents

Less: Bank Owverdraft
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flow

(b) Reconciliation of net Operating Result to Cash
Provided from Operating Activities

Net Operating Result from Income Statement

Add:

Less:

Depreciation and Impairment

Impairment of investments

Increase in provision for doubtful debts
Increase in provision for leave entitlements
Increase in Other Provisions

Decrease in receivables

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in other current assets

Increase in payables

Increase in accrued interest payable
Increase in other current liabilities
Decrements from revaluations

Loss on sale of assets

Fair value adjustments to investment property
Amortisation of discounts & premiums recognised
Other

Decrease in provision for doubtful debts
Decrease in employee leave entitlements
Decrease in Other Provisions

Increase in receivables

Increase in inventories

Increase in other current assets
Decrease in payables

Decrease in accrued interest payable
Decrease in other current liabilities
Rewersal of previous revaluation decrements
Non cash contributions and dedications
Gain on sale of Assets

Fair value adjustments to financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss

Fair value adjustments to investment properties
Amortisation of discounts & premiums recognised
Non Cash Capital Grants & Contributions

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
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2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
15,805 13,973
15,805 13,973
2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
12,234 23,246
19,075 18,387
682 1,722
734 -
g 90
s 738
x 1,032
50 -
4,247 S
(33) (15)
: (657)
(117) -
(157) .
(3.880) -
- (1)
= (80)
. (771)
(345) (75)
(34) (14)
- (12,500)
32,456 31,102
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 11 Reconciliation of Operating Result to Net Cash Movement From
Operating Activities (continued)

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
(c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
Acaquisition of Plant & Eguipment
by means of finance leases - -
S.94 contributions in kind - -
Dedications - 12,500
12,500
(d) Financing Arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date
to the following lines of credit:
Bank Owerdrafts Facility -
Corporate credit cards 45 45
45 45
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but
not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:
Buildings - =
Plant & Equipment - -
Macquarie Business Centre signage 24 -
Architectural Services - surf attraction 33 2
Parking Meter Upgrade 173 -
Parramatta River Flood Study - 73
Granite Paving 1,614 -
Gross Pollutant Trap - 128
Total 1,844 200

These expenditures are payable:

- Not later than one year 1,844 200
- Later than one year and not later than 5 years = -

- Later than 5 years - -
Total 1,844 200

(b) Finance lease commitments

Commitments under finance leases at the reporting date

are payable as follows:

- Not later than one year - -
- Later than one year and not later than 5 years - -
- Later than 5 years - -
Total = -

Minimum lease payments 5 #
Less: future finance charge = =
Lease liability e -

Representing lease liabilities:

- Current - =
- Non-Current - -
Total - -

Description of Leases:
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ITEM 4 (continued)

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 12 Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

2013
($'000)

(c) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

at 30 June 2013 but not recognised in the financial

statements are payable as follows:

- Not later than one year -
- Later than one year and not later than 5 years -
- Later than 5 years -

ATTACHMENT 8

2012
($'000)

Total =

(d) Repairs and maintenance: investment property

Contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance -

Total -
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ITEM 4 (continued)

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

ATTACHMENT 8

NOTE 13 STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES — CONSOLIDATED

RESULTS

Amounts
($'000)
1. UNRESTRICTED CURRENT RATIO
Current Assets Less All External Restrictions ‘") $60,119

Current Liabilities Less Specific Purpose Liabilities @®@  $13,606

2. DEBT SERVICE RATIO

Debt Senice Cost (Principal & Interest Payments) $612

Income from continuing operations, excluding capital $89,680
items and specific purpose grants/contributions

3. RATE COVERAGE RATIO

Rates and Annual Charges $61,079

Income from continuing operations $111,383

4. RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES
OUTSTANDING PERCENTAGE

Rates and Annual Charges Outstanding $2,509

Rates and Annual Charges Collectable $63,840
5. BUILDINGS & INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWALS RATIO

Asset Renewals (building & infrastructure)® $14,018

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment $14,970
(building & infrastructure)

) Refer to Notes 6 - 8 Inclusive

" Refer to Note 10(a)

©® $5381K provisions not expected to be settled deducted.
4 $6,236K provisions not expected to be settled deducted.
® Refer Note 9(a) - Notes
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Current
Year

Indicators 2012

4.42:1

0.68%

54.84%

3.93%

93.64%

3.721

0.75%

51.48%

4.19%

80.19%

2011

4.79:1

0.83%

56.29%

3.99%

47.87%
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)

At Fair Value

Opening balance at July 1 2012 2,275 2,200
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustment 345 75

Closing Balance at 30 June 2013 2,620 2,275

(a) Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss for Investment Property
Rental income 227 211
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustment 345 75
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (23) (21)

Total 549 265

(b) Valuation Basis

The basis of the valuation of investment properties is at fair value being the

amounts for which the properties could be exchanged between willing parties in

an arm's length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for

similar properties in the same location and condition subject to similar leases.

The 2013 revaluations were based on independent assessments made by Scott

Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd, a member of the Australian Property Institute.

(c) Contractual obligations

Refer to Note 12 for disclosure of any contractual obligations to purchase,

construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or

enhancements.

(d) Leasing Arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases

with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease payments receiveable on leases of

investment properties are as follows.

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of investment

properties not recognised in the financial statements are receivable as follows:
- Not later than one year 227 212
- Later than one year and not later than 5 years 638 733
- Later than 5 years 74 121

Total 939 1,066
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to
foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the Finance Unit under policies approved by the Council.
Council held the following financial instruments at balance date:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,805 13,973 15,805 13,973
Receivables 6,701 7,402 6,701 7,402
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets = - = =
Held-to-maturity investments 76,072 65,109 76,393 65,174
98,578 86,484 98,899 86,549
Financial liabilities
Payables 14,843 16,387 14,843 16,387
Borrowings 3,422 3,904 3,422 3,904
18,265 20,291 18,265 20,291

Fair value is determined as follows:

« Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables — estimated to be the camrying value which
approximates net market value

« Borrowings, Held-to-Maturity Investments — estimated future cash flows discounted by the current market
interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles.

« Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit and loss, Available for Sale Financial Assets — based on
quoted market prices at the reporting date or independent valuation.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value have been classified using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The levels of the hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsenvable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
The value of financial instruments carried at fair value shown in the relevant level of the hierarchy is shown
below:
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Level 1 = &
Lewel 2 Z a
Lewvel 3 - -
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 15 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and presening capital. The Finance Unit manages the cash and investments portfolio with the
assistance of independent advisers. Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local
Government Act and Minister's Order. The policy is regularly reviewed by Council and an Investment Report
provided to Council monthly setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio.

The major risk associated with investments is price risk — the risk that the capital value of investments may
fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to
individual financial instruments or their issuers or factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

Cash and investments are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could
affect returns. Another risk associated with cash and investments is credit risk — the risk that a contracting
entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument resulting in a financial loss to Council.

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high credit
ratings or capital guarantees. Council also seeks advice from its independent advisers before placing any
cash and investments.

30/06/2013 30/06/2012

$'000 $'000
Impact of a 10%" movement in price of investments:
- Equity = o
- Income statement - -
Impact of a 1%") movement in interest rates on cash and
investments:
- Equity 919 791
- Income statement 919 791
Notes:

(1) Sensitivity percentages based on management'’s expectation of future possible market movements.
(Price movements calculated on investments subject to fair value adjustments. Interest rate movements
calculated on cash, cash equivalents, managed funds, and FRNs.) Recent market wolatility has seen larger
market movements for certain types of investments.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 15 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Receivables

Council's major receivables comprise rates and annual charges and user charges and fees. The major risk
associated with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that the debts may not be repaid. Council
manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery policies.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a
secured charge ower the land — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to
charge interest on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages
payment.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required.
There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

The profile of the Council’s receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

2013 2013 2012 2012
Rates & Rates &
Annual Other Annual Other
Charges Receivables Charges Receivables
(i) Ageing of Receivables
- Current (not yet overdue) - 4,339 - 5,020
- Past due 2,184 363 2,288 312
2,184 4,702 2,288 5,332
2013 2012
(ii) Movement in Provision for
Impairment for Receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year 218 233
Plus: New provisions recognised during the year 121 5
Less: Amounts already provided for & written off (154) (20)
Balance at the end of the year 185 218
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ITEM 4 (continued)

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 15

(c) Payables
Borrowings

Financial Risk Management (continued)

ATTACHMENT 8

Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — that is the risk that insufficient funds may be on
hand to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due. Council manages this risk by monitoring its

cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms can be
extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of Council’'s Payables and Borrowings are set out in the Liquidity

Sensitivity Table below.

2013 Due Within Due Between Due After Total Carrying
$°000 1Year 1and5 Years 5 Years Contractual Values
Cash Flows
Payables 14,843 - - 14,843 14,843
Borrowings 527 2,281 614 3,422 3,422
15,370 2,281 614 18,265 18,265
2012 Due Within  Due Between Due After Total Carrying
$'000 1 Year 1and 5 Years 5 Years Contractual Values
Cash Flows
Payables 16,387 - - 16,387 16,387
Borrowings 492 2,191 1,221 3,904 3,904
16,879 2,191 1,221 20,291 20,291

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs. The Finance Unit regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be
advantageous to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The following interest rates were applicable to Council’'s borrowings at balance date:

30 June 2013
Weighted
average
interest rate Balance
% $'000
Ovwerdraft N/A -
Bank Loans — Variable (" 3.02% 3,423
3,423

Note:

30 June 2012

Weighted
average
interest rate
%

N/A
3.73%

Balance
$'000
3,905
3,905

" The interest rate risk applicable to Variable Rate Bank Loans is not considered significant.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 16 MATERIAL BUDGET VARIATIONS

Council’s original budget was incorporated as part of the 2012-2016 Delivery Plan adopted by the
Council on 26 June 2012.

Whilst the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the original
budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act requires Council to review its original budget on a
quarterly basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals and budget that invariably
occur throughout the year.

In accordance with section 407 of the Local Government Act 1993, variations to Council's budget are reported
to Council on a quarterly basis as part of the Management Plan Implementation Report. These documents
can be viewed on Council's website at www.ryde.nsw.gov.au
This Note sets out the details of material variations between the original budget and actual results
for the Income Statement. Material favourable (F) and unfavourable (U) variances represent amounts
of 10% or more of the budgeted amount.
Revenues
User Charges and Fees $1,335K 11% (F)
Council received user charges of $13,294k which was above the original budget by $1,335k (11%).
Council undertakes work on behalf of utility companies such as power, water and telecommunications, where

those companies have dug up the Council footpath. The Council undertakes the restoration works, which the
utility company pays.

Council received an addtional $1.47 million more in restoration funding than was originally budgeted.

Interest and Investment Revenue $802K 23% (F)

Council received interest revenue of $4,328k which was above the original budget by $802k (23%).

Council adopted a conservative approach to its original budget for interest, plus Council received a total of
$11.97 million in additional Sect 94 Contributions throughout the year. This coupled with $11.71 million on
hand has increased the amount of interest received on reserves. This additional interest has been restricted
in the Section 94 reserve.

Other Revenues $1,095K 17% (F)

Council received other revenues of $7,527k which was above the original budget by $1,095k (17%).
This relates to additional $1.31 million in parking fines above what was budgeted.

Grants & Contributions provided for operating purposes $306K 4% (F)

Council received other revenues of $7,126k which was above the original budget by $306k (4%).
This relates to additional grants from the RMS of $272K and a grant for the removal of graffiti of $100k.

Grants & Contributions provided for capital purposes $16,193K 882% (F)
Council received capital income of $18,029k which was above the original budget by $16,193k (882%).

This relates to $11.97 million in Section 94 contributions, $2.43 million from TINSW for works, plus $687K
from RMS and $356K for parks and playgrounds.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 16 Material Budget Variations (continued)

Expenses
Employee Benefits and On-costs -$1,220K -3% (F)
Due to vacancies throughout the year, Council was able to have a saving of $2.09 million in direct salaries.
Other Expenses -$1,140K -8% (F)
The savings in other expenses relate to Non-Capital Projects, which are an operating costs, and relate to

studies or plans, which were commenced in 2013/2013, but have been delayed and will be completed in
2013/2014.

Net Loss from the disposal of assets $4,247K 100% (U)

Whilst Council received a net gain on the disposal of some of its investments, being a total of $1,373k
favourable.

Council also had to write off $5,496k being the costs held in Work in Progress for the redevelopment of the

Civic Centre Precinct, which was due to the resolution of Council on 25 September 2013 to discontinue to
redewelop the site.

Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstep 55 Q Clty Of Dyde

Attachment 8 - 2012-2013 Audited Financial Statements



@® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity

@ your doorstep

Council Attachments Page 56

ATTACHMENT 8

ITEM 4 (continued)

:
8
5
g
i

STATEMENT OF DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

NOTE 17
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 18 CONTINGENCIES

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but knowledge of those items is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of
scarce resources:

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1 Guarantees
(i) Defined Benefits Superannuation Contribution Plans

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) is a defined
benefit plan that has been deemed to be a “multi-employer fund” for purposes of AASB119.
Sufficient information under AASB119 is not available to account for the Scheme as a
defined benefit plan, because the assets to the Scheme are pooled together for all
employers.

The amount of employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local
Government Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an expense for the year ending
30 June 2013 was $1,259,615. The last valuation of the Scheme was performed by Mr
Martin Stevenson BSc, FIA, FIAA on 20 February 2013 and covers the period ended 30
June 2013. However the position is monitored annually and the Actuary has estimated that
as at 30th June 2013 a deficit still exists. Effective from 1 July 2013, employers are
required to contribute additional contributions to assist in extinguishing this deficit. The
amount of additional contributions payable until the deficit is extinguished is $342,059.

The share of this deficit that can be broadly attributed to City of Ryde was estimated to
be in the order of $1,590,350 as at 30 June 2013.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to Local
Government. Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund
depending on its past performance. Council's share of the Net Assets or Liabilities reflects Council's
contributions to the pool and the result of insurance claims within each of the fund years. The future
realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30 June 2013 may result in future liabilities
or benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity. StateCover
is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW Local Government Industry and
specifically Gouncil. Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the

erosion of the Company's capital base as a result of the Company's past performance and/or claims
experience or as a result of any increase prudential requirements of APRA. These future equity
contributions would be required to maintain the Company's level of Net Assets in accordance with its
Licence Requirements.

2 Remediation Works
(i) Old landfill sites

The Council has a number of old landfill sites that were used for the purpose of disposal of domestic and
other waste, which have since been converted to playing fields. No liability arises from any potential
toxicity or subterranean leakage, but there will be ongoing remediation works that may be required from
time to time to reinstate the playing surfaces, due to subsidence following further settling of the waste
within the landfill.

Council has not, as yet, been able to reliably determine the quantum of liability for this future works, but
has estimated that it could cost approximately $150,000 per annum.

I e b N BN
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 18 Contingencies (continued)

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
(i) Infringement Notices/Fines

Fines & penalty income, the result of Council issuing Infringement Notices is followed up and collected by
the Infringement Processing Bureau. Council's Revenue Recognition policy for such income is to account
for it as revenue on receipt. Accordingly, at Year End, there is a potential asset due to Council
representing issued but updated Infringement Notices. Due to the limited information available on the
status, value and duration of outstanding Notices, Council is unable to determine the value of outstanding
income.

(ii) Pedestrian Bridge and Tunnel, Top Ryde

Council, as part of the approval of a Development Application for the Top Ryde City Shopping Centre
entered into an agreement with the owners and dewelopers, Belvista Pty Ltd, where a monetary contribution
was paid for the purchase of a tract of land at the front of Council's Administration Centre, 1 DeMin St,
Ryde. Also one of the conditions of the Development Application was a long-term lease of 49 years, with a
50 year option, between Council and the Dewvelopers, where Council leased the airspace in which a number
of assets were to be constructed. The assets consisted of:

Two pedestrian bridges across Devin Street.
The tunnels into the Top Ryde City Shopping Centre, plus the tunnels towards the Civic Centre site.

What this means to Council is that there is a contingent asset that will become Councils at the end of the
lease.

(iii) Michael Lardelli Park - Putney (Royal Rehabilitation site)

Council as part of the development of the Royal Rehabilitation site at Putney is to take possession of a
detention basin and park within the development. This was official opened in March 2012 by the Mayor,
but Council is yet to take possession and ownership of the park, as it is contingent on works being
completed.

Until that time the developer is responsible for the maintenance of the park. Council will, when it takes
ownership, bring the asset to account, which is estimated at $4.26 million.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Council has no interests in joint ventures or associates.

NOTE 20 REVALUATION RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

2013 2012

($'000) ($'000)
(a) Retained earnings
Movements in retained earnings were as follows:
At beginning of year 1,713,135 1,689,889
Adjustment to correct prior years errors (Note 20 (d)) - -
Net operating result for the year 12,234 23,246
At end of year 1,725,369 1,713,135
(b) Revaluation reserves
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 260,507 518,376
Total assets 260,507 518,376
Movements:
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
At beginning of year 518,376 518,376
Revalution - gross (" (350,362) =
Depreciation transfer - gross 92,493 -
At end of year 260,507 518,376

Available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve

At beginning of year - -
Revalution- gross

Transter to net profit - gross

At end of year - -

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation

resene is used to record increments and decrements on

the revaluation of non-current assets.

(d) Correction of errors in previous years
There are no correction of errors in previous years.

(1) The major adjustment relates to a change in the valuation of Council's infrastructure assets and are affected mainly
by Roads and Stormwater Drainage assets.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 21 RESULTS BY FUND

Council has only one consolidated fund.

NOTE 22 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2013 2012
($'000) ($'000)
Operational Land 910
Buildings
Total 910 -

NOTE 23 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no events occurring after Balance Sheet Date that require reporting.

NOTE 24 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

There were no operations discontinued by Council during the year.

NOTE 25 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Council has no Intangible Assets to report.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

NOTE 26 REINSTATEMENT, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION LIABILITIES

Site Remediation

Council was required by law to restore sites at Wellington Road and Parsonage Street to their original condition,
following their former usage as Council works depots. These works have been completed and the sites reinstated.

Council is investigating its liabilities during 2013/2014 in relation to old landfill sites, and this is noted at
Note 18 - Contingent Liabilities. Once quantified it will be noted here.

2013 2012
($°000) ($'000)

At beginning of the year -
Revised Costs -

Remediation Works = -
At end of the Year : -
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purp
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CITY OF RYDE
GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of
Ryde, which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013, Income
Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the Statement by Councillors and
Management. The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the
economic entity and the entities it controlled at year end or from time to time during the
year,

Responsibility of Council for the Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Local Government Act 1993. This responsibility includes
the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls designed to prevent
and detect fraud and error; designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Our audit responsibility does not
extend to the original budget information disclosed in the Income Statement, Statement of
Cash Flows, and Note 2(a) or the budget variation explanations disclosed in Note 16. Nor
does our responsibility extend to the projected future developer contributions and costs
disclosed in Note 17. Accordingly, no opinion is expressed on these matters.

Assurance Partners

T +81 29232 5111 Level 5, | Chifiey Square GPO Box 7066
F +61 29233 7950 Sydewy NSW 2000 Aystralia Sydoey NSW 2001

Pracuising as Ml Rogars Spencer ABN 56 435 308 956
Stesr Assurance Partners

Mambar of K5 International. an assodacion of gabal i

Lishilicy bmizad by o schomne approved under Profagsiorl Standards Le
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Pul
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An audit involves performing procedures to obrain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Council's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Council
or management.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements,

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion,

(a) the Council's accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, Chapter |13 part 3 Division 2; and

(b) the financial statements:
0] have been presented in accordance with the requirements of this Division;
(i) are consistent with the Council's accounting records;
(i) present fairly the Council's financial position, the results of its operations and
its cash flows; and
(iv)  arein accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements in Australia.

(c) all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained; and

(d) there are no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statemenrs that
we have become aware of during the course of the audit.

HILL ROGERS SPENCER STEER

4

BRETT GER
Partner

Dated at Sydney this 8= day of October 2013

City of Ryde
General Purpose Financial Statements
Independent Auvditors’ Report Page 2
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Srwwe i .

8 October 2013

The Mayor

City of Ryde

| Devlin Street
RYDE NSW 2112

Mayor,
Audit Report - Year Ended 30 June 2013

We are pleased to advise completion of the audit of Council's books and records for the
year ended 30 June 2013 and that all information required by us was readily available. We
have signed our reports as required under Section 417(1) of the Local Government Act,
1993 and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting to the
General and Special Purpose Financial Statements.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards so as to
express an opinion on both the General and Special Purpose Financial Statements of the
Council. We have ensured that the accounts have been prepared in accordance with
Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

This report on the conduct of the audit is also issued under Section 417(1) and we now
offer the following comments on the financial statements and the audit;

I. RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

I.I  Operating Result

The operating result for the year was a surplus of $12.234 million as compared with $23.246
million in the previous year.

Assurance Partners

=== = =2
T, +61 29232 5111 Level 5. | Chilley Square GPD Box 7066 ww w h-ghcom Practising as Hill Rogers Speacer ABN 56 435 138 966
F +4119233 7950 Sydmey NS'W 2000 Avreralis Sydney NSW 2001 wnfox @ hr-ss.com.au Seeer Assurance Partners

Member of KS Intermational, an asscciation of global ndependerst accounting firms
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Notes to the General Purj
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The following table sets out the results for the year and the extent (%) that each category of
revenue and expenses contributed to the total.

Seof %of Increase
2013 —— 012 Towl (O )
$000 $000 3000
Revenues before capital iterrs
Rates &annual charges 61079 6&5%  5B514 &% 2565
User charges, fess & other revenues 20821 2% 18899 2% 1922
Grants 8 contributions provided for
cperating purposes: 7126 B 8950 (429 (1.864)
Interest & investrrent revenue 4328 5% 4482 5% (154)
93,354 100% 0,885  100% 2,469
Errployes benefits & aosts 38005 38x 36471  4A0% 1,534
Mhterials, contracts & other eperses 41,939 4% 35365 3% 6574
Depreciation, amorisation & rpairrent 19075 19% 18387 .o 6688
Borrowing costs 130  O% 202 o 72)
99,199 100% 9045 100% 8724
Surplus/(Deficit) before capital itervs (5,795) 460 (6,255)
Grants & contributions provided for
capital purpcses 18029 22786 (4.757)
Net: Surplus/(Deficie) for the year 12234 23,246 (1,012

The table above shows an overall decrease over the previous year of $11.012 million and
can be attributable to decreased grants and contributions received and the write off of
capital works in progress.

1.2 Funding Result

The operating result does not take into account all r and all ditures and in

P

reviewing the overall financial performance of Council it is useful to take into account the

total source of revenues and where they were spent during the year which is illustrated in
the table below.

The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013
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2013 2012
Funds were provided by- $000 $000
Operating Resudt (as above) 12224 23,246

Add badk non funding iters-
- Depredation, amortisation & impairment 19075 18,387
~ Book value of norvaunrent assets sold 6794 1444
- Nenreash Contributions of assess acquired 0 (12,500
- (Gain)/Loss of fair value © investrent properties (345) (75)
37.758 30,502
Trarsfers fromintemal reserves (net) ] 10115
Net Changes in curent/non-aurrent: assets & liabilities 1,929 2264
39,687 42.881

Funds were agpplied ta-

Purdhase and construction of assets (24.165) (@2.895)
Increase/Purchase in Non-current: lnvestrrents @513) (16607)
Principal repaid on lcans (482) (442)
Trarsfers to extemnally restricted assess (neg) G174 (1.782)
Trarsfers to intermal reserves (neg) (2.539) (4]
(32.873) (41,726)
Increase/(Decrease) in Available Working Capital (186) 1,155

% FINANCIAL POSITION

2.1 Unrestricted Current Ratio

Thg Unrestrict_ed Current Ratio is a financial [~ O et Bl Rt b
indicator specific to local government and

represents Council's ability to meet its debts X
and obligations as they fall due. &

After eliminating externally restricted assets
and current liabilities not expected to be 2
paid within the next |2 months net current |
assets amounted to  $46.513  million = :":: ll i ok —
representing a factor of 442 to |. — —— :

2.2 Available Working Capital = (Working Funds)

A more meaningful financial indicator specific to local government is the level of Available
Working Capital. Net Current Assets are adjusted by eliminating both external and internal
restrictions held for future purposes.

The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audit Report for the year ended 30 june 2013 Page 3
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ITEM 4 (continued)

Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements 30 June 2013

detailed below;

ATTACHMENT 8

ers
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At the close of the year the Available Working Capital of Council stood at $5.174 million as

2013 2012 Change
$000 $000 $000
Net Qlarvent Assets (Working Capital) as
per Accounts 44474 32904 11,570
Adct Payables, provisions &inventaries not
expected to be realised in the next 12 months
inchuded above 11,520 11,684 (164)
Adyusted Net Current: Assers 55994 44588 11,406
Ackt Budgeted & expectad to pay in the next
12 months
- Borrowings 527 492 35
- Ervployess leave entitlerrents 4472 3423 1,045
- Depcsits & retention rmoneys 1811 1,774 . f
Less: Baemally restricted assets (3481) (6307) (G749
Less: Interrally restricted assets 48149) (38610) (9539
Ayrailable Whridng Capital as at 30 June 5174 5360 (188)

The balance of Available Working Capital should be at a level to manage Council's day to
day operations including the financing of hard core debtors, stores and to provide a buffer
against unforeseen and unbudgeted expenditures. Taking into consideration the nature and
level of the internally restricted assets (Reserves) set aside we are of the opinion that
Avzilable Working Capital as at 30 June 2013 was sound.

2.3 Debt {

|
Operating revenue (excluding special purpose
grants and contributions) required to service
these repayments was 0.68%.

Total debt at 30 June 2013 amounted to
$3.422 million.

24 Summary

%

Debt Service Ratio

[Rawe] — vasy

| s

| ersw | osx

Council's overall financial position as at 30 June 2013, when taking into account the above

financial indicators was, in our opinion, sound.

The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Pu

3 CASH ASSETS
EN Cash & Investments

Cash and investments held at the close of the year amounted to $91.877 million as
compared with $79.082 million and $69.064 million at the close of financial years 2012 and

2011 respectively.
it 7
$m Cash & Investments
The chart alongside summarises 60
the purposes for which cash 50
and investments were held. 40
30
0
ol
] |
v External
Restricfions Internal Restrictions | Uncommitted Funds
Q011 12.263 51676 5.125
2012 20942 50.889 7251
\ 2013 34422 52830 4.625

Externally restricted cash and investments are restricted in their use by externally
imposed requirements and isted of unexpended development contributions under
Section 94 of $22.117 million, dc ic waste agement charges of $4.789 million and
specific purpose grants, contributions and levies of $7.516 million.

Internally restricted cash and investments have been restricted in their use by resolution
or policy of Council to reflect forward plans, identified programs of works, and are, In fact,
Council's “Reserves”. These Reserves totalled $52.830 million and their purposes are
meore fully disclosed in Note é of the financial statements,

Unrestricted cash and investments amounted to $4.625 million, which Is available to
provide liquidity for day to day operations.

3.2  Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows illustrates the flow of cash (highly liquid cash and investments)
moving in and out of Councll during the year and reveals that cash increased by $1.832
millien te §15.805 million at the close of the year.

In addition to operating activities which contributed net cash of $32.456 million were the
proceeds from the sale of investments ($18.373 million) and other assets ($1.174 million).
Cash outflows other than operating activities were used to purchase investments ($27.929
million), repay loans ($482,000) and to purchase and construct assets ($21.76 million).

“The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audic Report for the year anded 30 Juna 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the General Pu

4. RECEIVABLES
4.1  Rates & Annual Charges (excluding interest & extra charges)

Net rates and annual charges levied during the year totalled $61.079 million and represented
55% of Council's total revenues.

Including arrears, the total rates and annual charges collectible was $63.367 million of which
$61.183 million (97%) was collected.

4.2 Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Outstanding

Arrears of rates, annual & extra charges ol
stood at $2.509 million at the end of the =
year and represented 3.93% of those ™
receivables.

[Rass] wrox | 389% | 4% | 39%

4.3 Other Receivables

Receivables (other than rates, annual & extra charges) totalled $4.377 million and mainly
consisted of user charges and fees ($1.246 millien), accrued interest on investments
($893,000) and amounts due from government departments ($1.172 million).

Those considered to be uncertain of cellection have been provided for as doubtful debts and
this provision amounted to $185,000,

5. PAYABLES
5.1 Employees Leave Entitlements

Council's provision for its liability toward employees leave entitlements and associated on
costs amounted te $10,033 millien,

A cash reserve of $3.11 million was held at year end representing 31% of this liability and
was, in our opinion, sufficient to meet unbudgeted and unanticipated retirements.

5.2 Deposits, Retentions & Bonds

Deposits, retentiens and bonds held at year end amounted to $8.047 million which were
fully funded by internally restricted cash and investments.

The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2013 Page 6

S AT T BZTLC,?

Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstep 69 0 Clty Of Dydc

Attachment 8 - 2012-2013 Audited Financial Statements



@® City of Ryde
Lifestyle and opportunity
@ your doorstep

Council Attachments Page 70

ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

A

6. BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWALS

The Buildings and Infrastructure Renewals [

ratio measures the rate at which these assets Sy e S trutoe Rnamalebans
are renewed against the rate at which they | '™
are depreciating. o)
60X
The ratio indicates that asset renewals for | 4o
2013 represented 94% of the depreciation | ;.
charges for these assets. An industry o
benchmark is considered to be [100%, 2010
measured annually over the long term. [Raco| ws2ax | 47878 | eniox | wiean

7. MANAGEMENT LETTER

An audit management letter addressing the findings from our interim audit was issued on 24
April 2013, This included our recommendations on possible ways to strengthen andfor
improve procedures management's comments and proposed actions.

8. CONCLUSION

We wish to record our appreciation to your General Manager and his staff for their ready
co-operation and the courtesies extended to us during the conduct of the audit.

Yours faithfully,
HILL ROGERS SPENCER STEER

£l

BRETT GER
Partner

The Mayor, City of Ryde
Audit Report for the year ended 30 june 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLORS AND MANAGEMENT MADE

PURSUANT TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE OF ACCOUNTING

PRACTICE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

* NSW Government Policy Statement "Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government”

* Division of Local Government Guidelines "Pricing and Costing for Council
Businesses: A Guide to Competitive Neutrality”

* The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

* The NSW Office of Water, Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water
Guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these Statements

« presents fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for each of
Council's declared Business Activities for the year, and

« accords with Council's accounting and other records
We are not aware of any matter that would render the reports false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 September 2013.

Councillor Roy Maggio Coungcillor Justin Li

Mayor Deputy Mayor
e ——

Mr Roy Newsome Mr John Todd

Aciting General Manager Chief Financial Officer
(Responsible Accounting Officer))
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Purpose Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2013

INCOME STATEMENT OF OTHER BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
for the year ended 30 June 2013

($000's
Hyde Agquatic Leisure] GCommercial Wasie
Centre Management
(Category 1) (Category 2)
213 2012 2013 2012

Income from continuing operalions
Annual Charges . . . -
User Charges 4,861 4,371 a1 TaT
Fees - - - -
Intarast - - . -
Other income 120 8 . *
Granis & Contributions provided for Non-Cagpital Purposes - - - -
Prodit from the sale of assels : : : -
Total Income From Continuing Operations 4,781 4,379 B11 787
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on cosis 2,703 2,526 - 12
Materials and Contracts T42 T4z 33 266
Bowmowing costs - - - -
Depreciation and impaimmaent 1,167 877
Loss on sale of assels - 40 - -
Calculated Taxation Equivalents 147 138 . -
Other axpenses 44 41 206 126
Total Expenses From Continuing Operations 4 803 4,364 597 404

Surplus (Deficit) from Continuing Operations
before capital amounts 22 15 214 383
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes . - .

Surplus (Deficit) from Continuing Operations
after capital amounts 22y 15 214 B3
Swurplus (Deficit) from Discontinued Operations . - - -

Surplus (Deficit) from All Operations before Tax {22) 15 214 3583
Less Corporate Taxation Equivalant (30%%) - 5 B4 1ns
[based on Operating resull belane capital]
Surplus (Deficil) After Tax 22 10 150 268 |
Opening Retained profits * ata0a | 31,044 200 200
Adgustments for Amounts Uinpasd:-

Taxation Equivalen Payments 147 138 - -

Comporate Taxation Equivalent - 5 B4 15
Plus: Subsidy from Council - - - -
Plus: Equity Conlributions 688 365 - -
Less: Equity Withdrawals . . . .
Less: TER Dividend payment (non resircted activities) {147} (143 |64) {115}
Less: Surplus Divdend paymant (non restncted activties) - {10 {150} {25y
Closing Retained Profits 32,075 31,409 200 200

RETURN ON CAPITAL (%) -0.1% 0.0% NA N/A
SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL - 4 : H

e S e
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ITEM 4 (continued)

Special Purpose Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2013

ATTACHMENT 8

BALANCE SHEET OF OTHER BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
for the year ended 30 June 2013

(S000's)
Ryde Aquatic Leisure Commercial Waste
Centre Management
(Category 1) (Category 2}
2013 2012 2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash Asset and cash equivalents 8429 1,782
Imestments - - - -
Reaceivables 72 T4 288 220
Imentones 12 12 . .
Cther - - 51 33
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,513 1,873 339 253
NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Imestments - *
Recehvables B =
Imentories - -
Infrastructure, Propery, Plant & Equipment 29,587 43,752 =
Othexr - - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 29,587 43,752 - .
TOTAL ASSETS 38,100 45,625 334 253
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 257 254 82 48
Interest Bearing Liabilities . - -
Provsions 64T 528 =
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 904 782 8z 51
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables o -
Interest Bearing Liabilities . . . .
Provsions 12 12 57 2
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 12 12 57 2
MET ASSETS 37,184 44,831 200 200
EQUITY
Retained Eamings 32,075 31,409 200 200
RAesaluation Reseres 5,109 13,422
TOTAL EQUITY 37,184 44,831 200 200
-EEE = L o
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policles adopted in the preparation of the Special Purpose
Financial Repon (SPFS) for National Competition Policy repording purposes fallows.

These linancial statements are a SPFS prepared for use by the Council and Division of Local Governmenl. For the
purposes of these stalements, the Council s not a reporting entity.

The figures presented in these special purpose financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition criteria of applicable Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the AASE and
Australian Accounting Interpretation. The disclosures in thesa special purpose linancial statemants have been prepared
In accordance with the Local Government Act and Regulation and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practica
and Financial Reporting.

This special purpose financlal report, unbess olherwise stated, has been prepared In accordance with applicable
Australian Accounting Standards, other authosilative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, the Local Government Act and Regulations, the Local Government Code ol
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting and the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual,

The stalemenis are also prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not fake inlo account
changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current values ol non-current assets, Certain taxes and
other costs, appropriately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principla of "compeltitive neutrality’ 1o is business activities as part of the national competition
policy which is being applied throughowt Australia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is sel oul
in the June 1996 Governmen Policy statement on the "Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government”,
The “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses - A Guide lo Competitive Meutrality” issued by the Division of Local
Government in July 1997 has also been adopled.

The pricing & costing guidelines culline the process lor identifying and allocating cosis to activives and provide a
slandard of disclosure requiraments, These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing andlor financial reporting
systems and include taxation equivalents; Council subsidies; and return on investments (rate of return); and dividends
paid.

Declared Business Aclivities

In accordance with Pricing & Costing lor Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Newtrality, Council has declared
that the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
MNamea Brief Description of Activity
Ryde Agquatic Leisure Cenfre Provision of aguatic and dry counl sports and leisure
facilities
Category 2
Name Briel Descrigtion of Activity

Commercial Waste Removal Commercial waste collection, recycling and disposal,

Monetary Amounts
Amounts shown in the inancial statements are in Australian currency and rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars,

Taxation Equivalent Payments

Countl is liable to pay various laxes and financial duties. Where this i5 the case, they are disclosed as a cost of
operations (General Purpose Financial Statement) like all other costs, However, where Council does nol pay some
taxes which are genarally paid by private sector businesses, such as income tax, these equivalenl tax payments have
been applied to all Councll nominated business activities and are rellected in the SPFS, For the purposes ol disclosing

. IHE'EnE B0 D el
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the Special Purpose Fir

comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent the following taxation equivalents have been applied to
all Council nominated business activities:

| Tax Notional Rate Applied %

Corporate Tax Rate 30%

Land Tax 1.6% of the value in excess of $387,000 but less than $2,366,000.
2% of the value in excess of $2,366.000

Payroll Tax 5.48% of total labour payments for the individual business activity
in excess of $658.000

Stamp Duty Statutory rates as published by the Cffice of State Revenue.

Income Tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business. Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs 1o be taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of return required on
capital invested. Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level (gain/(loss) from ordinary activities
before capital amounts) as would be applied by a private sector competitor — that is, it should include a provision
equivalent 1o the corporate income tax rate, currently 30%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved. Since the
taxation equivalent is notional, that is, it is payable to the "Council” as the owner of business operations, it represents an
internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council.

Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal charges in the GPFR. The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent
company tax rate prevalent as at balance date. No adjustments have been made for variations that have occurred during
the year,

Local Government Rates & Charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied 1o all assets owned or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and Debt Guarantee Fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face “true” commercial borrowing costs in
line with private sector competitors, In order o calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the
differential borrowing rate would have been between the commercial rate and the council's borrowing rate for its
business activities.

() Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers and the funding of those subsidies must be explicitly
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised
on a range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations. The overall effect of subsidies is
contained within the Income Statement of Business Activities.

(i) Return on Investments (Rate of Return)

The Policy statement requires that Councils with Category 1 businesses "would be expected to generale a return on
capital funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field”. Funds
are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. Where a business activity
has required the investment of capital assets, the rate of return on investment is disclosed in the Income Statement of
Business Activities.

(iii) Dividends
Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself as owner of a range of businesses or to any external entities.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

18,

rcmr

CITY OF RYDE
SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financiol statements of the City of
Ryde, which comprises the Smatement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013, Income
Statement for the year ended on that date, 3 summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes and the Satement by Coundillors and Management.

Responsibliity of Council for the Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fir presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 and have determined that
the accounting policies described in Note | to the financial statements, which form part of
the financial statements, are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the
Division of Local Government. This responsibdity includes the maintenance of adequate
accounting records and internal controls designed to prevent and detect fraud and error;
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and falr
presentation of the fimancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the crcumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audic
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whather the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Counci’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Coundil, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

Héu K}%ngr

Our audit did not Involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Council
or management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
3 basiz for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the special purpose fimancial statements of the Council are presented fairly in
accordance with the requirements of those applicable Accounting Standards detalled in Note
| and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.
Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note | to the financial statements,
which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the
purpose of fulfilling the financial reporting requirements of the Division of Local
Government. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

HILL ROGERS SPENCER STEER

Sz

Partner

Dated at Sydney this 8* day of October 2013
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Schedules - Year Ended 30 June 2013

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
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Table of Contents SS 3
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Special Schedule 2(b) Statement of Intemal Loans Ss 8
Special Schedule 7 Condition of Public Works ss 9-11
Special Schedule 8 Financial Projections ss 12
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Special Schedules - Year Ended 30 June 2013
SPECIAL SCHEDULES - Schedule No. 1
MET COST OF SERVICES
for the year ended 30 June 2013
(5'000)
EXPEMNSES FROM
CONTINUING AEVENUES FROM NET COST OF
OPERATIONS CONTINUIMNG OPERATIONS SERWCES
Man
Function or Activity Expenses| Group | Capital | Capital | Group Met Group
Totals |Rewvenues |Revenues| Totals Cost Totals
GOVERMANCE 2.315 7l {2.308)
2315 7 {2,308
ADMINISTRATION
(Corporate Support 3277 218 (3,058)
Engineering & Works 7,130 740 (6, 288)
\Other Support Serdces 18,358| 1984]) (18,350}
28772 [25) {28,797
PUBLIC ORDER & SAFETY
Statutory Contribution 1o Fire
Senice Lewy 1,812 (1,913
Fire Protection - Othar
Animal Controd 302 48 253
Beach Control
|Enforcement of Local Gov Regs 748 1,321 573
Emargency Senices 266 16| (250)
{Other 1,982 38495 2004
5,220 5,381 161
HEALTH
Administration & spection 259 387 B
Immunisation 105 a5 (T
Food Control
InsectVarmin Control
Noxious Plants 5 {5)
Health Contras 45 {45)
{Othar
515 anz 112
COMMURNITY SERVICES &
EDUCATION
Administration 02 26, (675}
Family Cany
ild Care 17 (17
Youth Sendces 180 29 (151)
her Families & Children 143] B5 (78]
Aged & Disabled 548 583 47
Migrant Sendces
boriginal Serdces
her Community Sandces 1,241 237 (1,003)
Education 14 59 45
2,842 1,010 11.833)
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
NET COST OF SERVICES (CONT)
EXPENSES FROM
CONTINUING REVENUES FROM NET COSTOF
OPERATIONS CONTINUING OPERATIONS SERVICES
Non
Function or Actiuty Expenses| Group | Capital | Capital | Group Net Group
Totals |Revenues|Rey Totals Cost Totals
HOUSING & COMMUNITY
AMENITIES
Housing
Town Planning 5213 2,819 1,792 (603)
Domestic Waste Management 13,491 14,575| 1,084
iOther Waste Management 1,596 1,019 (577)
681 (681)
4,955 1,214 209| (3,532)
683 10 (672)
413 (£13)
27.032 21,639| (5,394)
5,143 918 (4,225)
387 185 (183)
470 44 (29)
303 a2 21)
4,849 4,873 24
2,852 534 463| (1,855)
6,972 330 35 (6,607)
254 255 1
2121 8,126 (13,085)
604 217 (387)
604 217 @
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Speclal Schedules - Year Ended 30 June 2013
MET COST OF SERVICES (CONT)
EXPEMSES FROM
CONTINUING REVEMLIES FROM MET COST OF
OPERATIONS CONTINUING OPERATIONS SERWMCES
Hon
Function or Actiily Expenses| Group | Capial | Capital | Group MNet Group
Totals |Rewenues|Aeenues| Totals | Cost Totals |
TRANSPOAT &
COMMUNICATION
Urban Roads : Local 9,788 4,057 13100 7,358
Lirban Roads : Regional 197 T4 {123y
Sealed Rural Roads : Local
Bridges on Lkban Roads © Local B3| {B3)
Bridges on Lkban Roads : Regional
Bridges on Lrban Roads : Other
Fiooipaths 4m 2,430 2.029
Aerodromes
Parking Areas Bay (aa)
Bus Shefters & Sendces 79 (75
Watar Transpon
ATA Works (State)
Street Lighting 2,217 354 {1,853)
har 27| 261 {18)
13,123] 20,286 7164
ECONOMIC AFFAIRS
Camping Areas
van Parks
Tourism & Area Promotion 5] {5
Industrial Development & Promation
Saleyards & Markets
Real Estate Development
mercial Mursearies
har Businass Underakings B 851 50
806 BS1 45
ALS - FUNCTIONS 02,441 57,894 {44,545
EMERAL PURPOSE REVENUES ' 52.631 52.631|

RECTION OF FUNDAMENTAL
ERROR &

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS @ 102,441 110,525 B, 085

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS @

ACTIVITIES & 102,441 110,525 £, 085

NOTE : 1 Includes:
Fates and Annual Charges (incl. Ex-Gratia)
MNen-Capital General Purpose Grants
Interest an Imesiments

2. As reported on the income Statement
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8

Special Schedules — Year Ended 30 June 2013

STATEMENT OF INTERNAL LOANS (Section 410(3) LGA 1993)
for the year ended 30 June 2013

($'000)
SUMMARY OF INTERNAL LOANS
Bomawer Amount Originally | Total Repaid During the Year | Principal Outsianding
by Purpose) Raised Principal & Interest at End of Year
General
Waler
Sewerage
Domestic Waste Management
(Gas
Ciiher 365 - 355
TOTALS 365 - 365
DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL INTERNAL LOANS
Borrowar Lendear Date of Date | Dates of | RAate of | Amount Total Principal
by purpose) | (by Purpose) | Ministers | Raised | Maturity | Interesi | Originally | Repald | Owlstanding
Approval Raised During al End
the Year ol Year
Principal
& Interest
RALC
Surf Attraction | RALC Resene 385 - 365
TOTALS 365 - 365
I EEE S e
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ITEM 4 (continued) ATTACHMENT 8
Special Schedules — Year Ended 30 June 2013
SPECIAL SCHEDULES - Schedule No. 8
Financial Projections
2013(1) 2014 2015 2016 2017
(§'000)  ($°000)  ($'000)  ($'000)  ($'000)
Operating Budget
Income From Continuing Operations 91,127 93,197 95093 97,384 99,417
Expenditure From Continuing Operations 98.461 102,307 104,958 108,356 112,954
Operating Result From Continuing Operations (7,334) (9,109) (9,865) (10,972) (13,537)
Capital Budget
New Capital Works @ 20,293 19,687 18410 17,112 13,642
Funded By:
Loans - 1,500 - - -
Asset Sales 1,000 1,150 925 1,075 900
Resenes 5643 12,123 11,063 11,151 7,483
Grants & Contributions 1,836 214 - 80 -
General Revenue 11,814 4,700 6,422 4,826 5259
Other

20,293 19,687 18,410 17,112 13,642

'l From income statement
" New capital works are major non-recurrent projects
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